
 
 

Special Children and Young People's Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
Date Thursday 3 October 2024 

Time 1.30 pm 

Venue Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 

Items which are open to the Public and Press 
Members of the public can ask questions with the Chair’s agreement, 

and if registered to speak 
 

 
 
1 Apologies for absence   

2 Substitute Members   

3 Declarations of Interest, if any   

4 Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties   

5 Review of Children's Social Care - Service Update Children's Social 
Care   

 A) Report of the Corporate Director of Children and 
Young People's Services  (Pages 3 - 10) 

 B) Presentation by Head of Children's Care  (Pages 11 - 
36) 

6 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 

Helen Bradley 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
 

  County Hall 
  Durham 
  25 September 2024 
 
 



 
 

 
To: The Members of the Children and Young People's Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Councillor A Reed (Chair) 
Councillor C Hunt (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors C Bell, J Cosslett, R Crute, S Deinali, K Fantarrow, 
J Griffiths, K Hawley, C Lines, L Mavin, D Mulholland, K Rooney, 
J Scurfield, M Simmons, S Townsend, C Varty, E Waldock and 
M Walton 
 
Faith Communities Representatives:  
Mrs L Vollans 
 
Parent Governor Representatives:  
Professor Gosia M Ciesielska and Mr P Debrett-Watson 
 
 

Co-opted Members:  
Ms A Gunn 
 
 
 

Contact:  Democraticservices@durham.gov.uk  



   

Special Children and Young People 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

3 October 2024  

Review of Children’s Care:  Service 

update from Children’s Social Care  

 

Report of John Pearce, Corporate Director for Children and Young 
People’s Services 

 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The purpose of the report is to provide members of Children and Young 
People Overview and Scrutiny Committee with information on: 

(a) The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care, including an 
update on the progress in County Durham 

(b) Impact on children and families accessing services 

(c) Impact on the service and information on the National Framework  

(d) National policy / legislation which are expected in the year ahead  

Executive summary 

2 At its meeting on 11 July 2024, CYPOSC agreed its work programme 
for 2024/25.  Included in that work programme is a special meeting 
focusing on the Independent Review of Children’s Care, including an 
update on the progress in County Durham, impact on children and 
families accessing services, and impact on the service and information 
on the National Framework.  This was to include information regarding 
any changes in national policy/legislation which are expected in the year 
ahead. 

3 Arrangements have been made for the Head of Children’s Social Care, 
in addition to representatives from her senior leadership team, to attend 
a special Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
briefing  meeting on 3rd October 2024 to deliver this information to 
members of the committee. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



Recommendation(s) 

4 Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
recommended to:  

(a) receive the report and presentation and comment accordingly. 

  

Page 4



Background 

5 At its meeting on 11 July 2024, CYPOSC agreed its work programme 
for 2024/25.  Included in that work programme is a special meeting 
focusing on the Independent Review of Children’s Social Care, 
including an update on the progress in County Durham, impact on 
children and families accessing services, impact on the service and 
information on the National Framework.  This was to include information 
of any changes in national policy/legislation which are expected in the 
year ahead. 

6 Arrangements have been made for the Head of Children’s Social Care, 
in addition to representatives from her senior leadership team, to attend 
a special Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
briefing  meeting on 3rd October 2024 to deliver this information to 
members of the committee. 

7 Members will find a presentation at appendix 2 of the cover report 
covering the following areas:  

• The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care - Aims. 

• The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care -  
Recommendations. 

• The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care - Government 
Response. 

• The Independent Review of Children’s Social Care - 6 pillars of 
Reform. 

• Key Policy and Publications. 

• National Framework.  

• National Progress.  

• Next Steps (pre-general election). 

• Other Key National Priorities/Bills. 

• OFSTED Big Listen and responses.  

• Local Activity aligned to reform.  

• Impact.  

• Next Steps.  

  

Page 5



Conclusion  

8 Members of Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee will be aware the Independent Review of Children’s Social 
Care and the subsequent Government Response, Stable Homes Built 
on Love (2023), suggested significant transformation in how we work 
with children and families to support and safeguard.  The emphasis on 
working with families and their network, providing the right support at 
the right time from the right professional, intervening with an expert child 
protection workforce and providing children with homes where they feel 
loved and a sense of belonging was central.  To achieve this, an 
emphasis on how we listen and respond to the voices of those 
experiencing services was central.   

9 Members will note within the presentation the progress made nationally 
in this whole system change, and council await the direction of the 
current government in the next steps.   

10 Members will see from the presentation key information specific to 
Social Care noted in the King’s Speech which introduced the Children’s 
Wellbeing Bill.  This aims to achieve changes which place children at 
the centre of Social Care and Education systems.  The bill sets out key 
expectations to enable children to grow, develop and achieve whilst 
recognising the diverse needs of all children.   

11 A further area of key change is in respect of Ofsted as external 
regulator. The presentation highlights the need for inspection framework 
changes, removal of the one-word inspection judgements for schools, 
and placing children at the heart of inspection.  Members will note 
councils await confirmation as to whether the one-word grade descriptor 
will also apply to social care inspections.  In addition to the proposed 
changes, Members are alerted to the new Joint Targeted Area 
Inspection (JTAI) theme of Domestic Abuse.  Members will be sighted 
on the previous JTAI in 2018 for Durham which focussed on Domestic 
Abuse.   

12 The final section of the presentation provides for members a summary 
of the key areas of congruence with the areas of Stable Homes Built on 
Love.  Whilst not intended to be an exhaustive list, the purpose is to 
provide assurance on the well-established commitment and principles 
and impact of this from multiple perspectives.  This includes our 
principles of practice, development of specialist services to intervene 
and effect meaningful change, promote family network and ensure 
children have accessible stable homes where they feel loved and 
belong through permanence. 

 

 

Page 6



Background papers 

None 

 

Other useful documents 

None 

 

Author(s) 

Bernadette Toomey   Tel:  03000 268 344 

 

Page 7



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

The report and presentation reference potential legislative changes and 

national policy change.   

Finance 

The report does not consider the financial implications of system change  

Consultation 

No implications 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

The report considers the governments ambition to promote equality in service 

for all children including those who would the public sector holds an equality 

duty  

Human Rights 

The report in particular considers the principles of right to family life and the 

nature of public body intervention to safeguard children.   

Climate Change 

No implications 

Crime and Disorder 

No implications 

Staffing 

No implications 

Accommodation 

No implications 

Risk 

The report considers the statutory responsibilities in delivering safeguarding 

services   

Procurement 

No implications 

 

Page 8



Appendix 2:  Presentation - Review of Children’s Care:  Service 

update from Children’s Social Care   

 

Attached separately  

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Special CYP OSC 

3rd October 2024

Presentation of Rachel Farnham, Head of 
Children’s Social Care  

Review of Children’s Care: 
Service update from Children’s 

Social Care 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5b



Key contents requested:

• Independent Review of Children’s Social Care, including an update on 
the progress in County Durham

• Impact on children and families accessing services 

• Impact on the service and information on the National Framework

• National policy / legislation which are expected in the year ahead

P
age 12



Government review commissioned in 2021 and published in 2022. 

Review aimed to explore:

• Intensive help to families in crisis

• Decisive responses to abuse

• Unlocking the potential of wider family networks to raise children 

• Putting lifelong loving relationships at the heart of the care system 

• Laying the foundations for a good life for those who have been in care

Independent Care Review - Key Aims

P
age 13



Care Review - Key Recommendations 

• A revolution in family help

• An expert child protection system

• Unlocking the potential of family networks 

• Transforming care

• The care experience

• Realising the potential of the workforce

• A system focused on children and families

• Implementation required substantial funding

P
age 14



Care Review - Government Response 

P
age 15



The Care Review: 6 pillars of Reform

Family help – provides 
the right support at the 

right time so that 
children can thrive with 

their families  

A decisive multi-agency 
child protection system

Unlocking the potential 
of family networks 

Putting love, 
relationships and a 

stable home at the heart 
of being a child in care

A valued, supported and 
highly skilled Social 

Worker for every child 
that needs one 

A system that 
continuously learns and 

improves and makes 
better use  of evidence 

and data 

P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



National Progress to Date 

P
age 19



P
age 20



P
age 21



Current Government Position 

• Local authorities are awaiting an update on the direction from central 
government on Stable Homes Built on Love

P
age 22



Other Key National Change and Development

• King’s Speech 2024 

• The Children’s Wellbeing Bill will put children and their wellbeing at 
the centre of the education and children’s social care systems, and 
make changes so they are safe, healthy, happy and treated fairly. 

• The Bill will remove barriers to opportunity and raise school standards 
to ensure the school system is fair for every child, no matter their 
background and deliver our manifesto commitments on children’s 
social care to ensure that all children can thrive in safe, loving homes.

P
age 23



The Bill will remove barriers to opportunity for children 

and their families by: keeping children safe, happy and 

rooted in their communities and schools by 

strengthening multi-agency child protection and 

safeguarding arrangements. 

P
age 24



Ofsted - Big Listen 

Key commitments announced:

• Ofsted commits to putting vulnerable children, such as those from 
disadvantaged backgrounds and those with special educational needs 
and/or disabilities (SEND) at the heart of its reforms.

• New inspection framework to have greater focus on pupil outcomes to 
drive higher standards, alongside a range of measures to reduce teacher 
stress.

• The overall ‘single word judgement’ will be phased out of Ofsted inspection 
reports, to be replaced with a report card, as announced by government.  
Awaiting confirmation as to whether this will apply to social care.  

P
age 25



Durham Key Activity Aligned to Reform 

P
age 26



How we Practice in Durham 

P
age 27



• Embedded Early Help offer to grow and develop family help

• Current Practice model - family as experts and solution to change 

• Expansion of routes to Social Work 

• Integrated commissioning arrangements with Health and Social Care 

• Development of specialist services to support key cohorts  - Adolescent 
Sexual Exploitation Team (ASET), Rapid Response, Pre-birth, Future Hope

• Sufficiency Board 

• Regional Fostering Recruitment

• System focus on Permanence and Belonging 

• Multi Agency Safeguarding Arrangements (MASA) arrangement review 

• Assisted and Supported Year in Employment (ASYE) and Leadership 
Academy 

P
age 28



• Ongoing development on participation 

• Development of Major Project Board

• Representation on National Groups to shape practice  - ADCS, policy, 
public law, workforce 

P
age 29



Impact - What the data tells us:

• Of the 34 children supported by the Rapid Response Service, none have 
required hospital admission before their 18th birthday after support has 
ended.  (Pillar 1,2,5)

• Durham has the lowest re-referral rate in the region and is higher 
performing than national and statistical neighbours – right support at the 
right time.  (Pillar 1,5)

• Durham remains higher than regional, national and statistical neighbours in 
respect of permanence through Special Guardianship Order (SGO) with 
family.  This is the highest percentage of children exciting care on SGO since 
2016.  (Pillar 3,5)

• 54 children are now matching with their forever families since January 
2024.  This is a 54% and 25% increase on full year total in 21/22 and 22/23.  
(Pillar 4,5)  

P
age 30



• Future Hope have reached 84 women who have had, in total, 257 children 
removed from their care.  None of the women have gone on to have any 
further children removed.  There are a number of women who have gone 
on to have babies that have remained in their care.  Women have had 
updated assessments which have resulted in children returning to their 
care or where family time has been progressed to unsupervised.  (Pillar 1)

• Pre-birth service - of the children with care experienced parents who had 
no previous children removed, 90.9% are currently in the care of one or 
both parents.  Of the children with young parents, 77.78 % were supported 
to remain in the care of parents.  (Pillar 1,2 and 4)

• We currently have the lowest turnover rate on record at 9.29%.  We are 
below comparators, and this has been a downward trend since 2023.  
(Pillar 5)

P
age 31



What children tell us:

“I just wanted to say thank you for 
everything you’ve done for me, and I really 

appreciate it like honestly, you’ve made 
things so much better you’ve made me think 
about things more and see things differently 

in a good way a positive way instead of being 
negative so thank you and I hope you go on 

to help another young person in need like you 
helped me. I know you will help someone 
you’re such a lovely person a person who 

truly cares.”

P
age 32



What families tell us:

“I honestly felt like I had reached rock bottom, and no 

one cared but the genuine empathy that you all 

showed made us see that there was people out there 

that wanted to help. We are all in a better place now 

and although we still have a long way to go, thanks to 

you all, there is much light at the end of the tunnel.”

“…from the start we were asked our thoughts 

and so were the children. (Social Worker) spent 

time with the children on their own to make 

sure they could speak if they needed to… (we 

worked together) really well, open, and 

approachable, genuine, and helpful. We feel 

very supported. (Social Worker) has managed 

things well.”

“Thank you for not giving up on me and 

guiding me towards a better path for me 

and my beautiful amazing little girl. I know I 

haven’t exactly been easy to work with, but I 

do appreciate the help you have given me 

and A. Thank you”

Hope can be found even 

in the darkest places 

P
age 33



What the workforce is telling us: 

“I really appreciate the leadership academy; it helps 

me slow down and think about what I need as a 
leader and what my team need from me.”

“Fabulous support from my enhanced 

practitioner. He was very supportive, welcoming 

and I could go to him for anything. I learnt lots 

of things from him.”

P
age 34



What professionals tell us:

“…in all of my years as an independent review officer this is probably 

one of the most profound changes, I have been involved with it’s not 

unusual for one parent to make the change but for both parents to 

make such a remarkable turnaround in their lifestyle and choices is 

fantastic to have experienced. (The Children) are back where they 

should be living with that mother as a family and with a plan for their 

father to return to the family home at some point in the new year. 

This is an excellent example of multi-agency working and the families 

first team should be very proud.”

“I would like to give particular 

thanks to the Social Worker 

who provided an exceptionally 

high quality of social work 

evidence which was provided 

to the court. It was 

exceptional and made 

preparation for this hearing 

much easier. It should be used 

as a model going forward.”

P
age 35



Next Steps 

• Government direction 

• Learning from national pathfinders 

• Development of the Durham Approach 

P
age 36


	Agenda
	5a Report of the Corporate Director of Children and Young People's Services
	5b Presentation by Head of Children's Care

